
 
        April 15, 2024 
  
John Chevedden  
 
Re: The Kraft Heinz Company (the “Company”) 

Incoming letter dated March 13, 2024 
 

Dear John Chevedden: 
 

This letter is in response to your correspondence concerning the shareholder 
proposal submitted to the Company by Kenneth Steiner. In response to a December 29, 
2023 request from the Company, on March 13, 2024 we issued a letter expressing our 
informal views on the matter. You have asked us to reconsider our position. 

 
We have reviewed the information contained in your correspondence, find no 

material information that has not been previously furnished, and have determined not to 
reconsider our position. See Statement of Informal Procedures for the Rendering of Staff 
Advice with Respect to Shareholder Proposals, Exchange Act Release No. 34-12599 
(July 7, 1976). 
 

Copies of all of the correspondence on which this response is based will be made 
available on our website at https://www.sec.gov/corpfin/2023-2024-shareholder-
proposals-no-action. 
 
       Sincerely, 
 
       Michael P. Seaman 
       Chief Counsel 

Division of Corporation Finance 
 
 
cc:  Lori Zyskowski 
 Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP  
 

https://www.sec.gov/corpfin/2023-2024-shareholder-proposals-no-action
https://www.sec.gov/corpfin/2023-2024-shareholder-proposals-no-action






Lori Zyskowski 
Direct: +1 212.351.2309 
Fax: +1 212.351.6309 
LZyskowski@gibsondunn.com 

  
 

Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP 

200 Park Avenue 
New York, NY  10166-0193 
Tel 212.351.4000 
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March 15, 2024 

VIA ONLINE SUBMISSION 

Office of Chief Counsel 
Division of Corporation Finance 
Securities and Exchange Commission 
100 F Street, NE 
Washington, DC 20549 

Re: The Kraft Heinz Company              
Stockholder Proposal of Kenneth Steiner 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934—Rule 14a-8 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

By letter submitted March 13, 2024, John Chevedden, on behalf of Kenneth Steiner (the 
“Proponent”), requested that the staff of the Division of Corporation Finance (the “Staff”) of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) reconsider its decision, dated March 
13, 2024, concurring that The Kraft Heinz Company (the “Company”) may omit a stockholder 
proposal that Mr. Chevedden submitted on behalf of the Proponent (the “Proposal”) from the 
Company’s proxy statement and form of proxy for its 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the 
“2024 Proxy Materials”) under Rule 14a-8(i)(8) and allow the Proponent to revise the Proposal 
to remove certain text (the “Request for Reconsideration”).  As discussed further below, the 
Company believes the Proponent’s request should be denied as it is untimely. 

By way of background, we submitted a no-action request (the “No-Action Request”) on 
behalf of the Company and with a copy to the Proponent on December 29, 2023, no later than 80 
days prior to the date that the Company intended to file its definitive 2024 Proxy Materials with 
the Commission.  Mr. Chevedden subsequently submitted to the Staff multiple letters on behalf 
of the Proponent, dated December 31, 2023, January 7, 2024, January 7, 2024, and January 21, 
2024.  The Staff responded to the No-Action Request on March 13, 2024, concurring that the 
Company could exclude the Proposal under Rule 14a-8(i)(8).   

Since receiving the Staff’s response to the No-Action Request, the Company has 
finalized and authorized printing of its form of proxy card, has finalized its proxy statement, and 
has signed off on printing of its proxy statement, which printing and mailing must occur in short 
order in order to utilize notice and access under Rule 14a-16.  Therefore, granting the Request 
for Reconsideration would impose significant burdens and expense on the Company.  Likewise, 
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if required, mailing supplemental proxy materials and soliciting revised proxies for the 2024 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders would impose substantial time and expense burdens on the 
Company and create potential confusion among stockholders.  As such, it would be unfair and 
unduly burdensome for the Staff to consider the Request for Reconsideration at this time.  

The Request for Reconsideration asks the Staff to allow the Proponent to amend the 
Proposal to exclude certain text that was the basis for the No-Action Request and to require that 
the Proposal as so amended appear in the Company’s 2024 Proxy Materials.  For the reasons 
described above, this request is untimely. The Request for Reconsideration also suggests that 
there would be an additional basis for reconsideration if the Board’s current Lead Director, John 
Pope, has not been nominated by the Company’s Board of Directors for election at the 2024 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.  However, the Company has confirmed to us that Mr. Pope has 
been nominated for election at the Company’s 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and will be 
named in the Company’s 2024 Proxy Materials.  In light of these considerations, the Staff should 
deny the Proponent’s Request for Reconsideration. 

If we can be of any further assistance in this matter, please do not hesitate to call me at 
(212) 351-2309 or Heidi Miller, the Company’s Corporate Secretary and Deputy General 
Counsel, Corporate Governance and Securities, at (847) 646-6016.  Correspondence regarding 
this letter should be sent to shareholderproposals@gibsondunn.com.   

Sincerely, 

 
Lori Zyskowski 
 
 
cc:  Heidi Miller, The Kraft Heinz Company 

John Chevedden 
Kenneth Steiner 










